
CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD MINUTES 
Wednesday, January 13, 2016 – 2:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, Vero Beach, Florida 
 
PRESENT: Vice Chairman, Kirk Noonan; Members: Suzanne Shell, Frank Pizzichillo, 
Jeffrey McGann, Stephen McDonald, Herbert Whittall and Christopher Bryant Also Present: 
City Attorney, Wayne Coment; Code Enforcement Officer, Tom Ramsey; Code Enforcement 
Officer, Melody Sanderson and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
Today’s meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m. 
 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE 
 
The Vice Chairman led the Board members and the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the flag. 
 
The Deputy City Clerk swore in staff and members of the audience en masse. 
 
3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS 
 

A) Chairman 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo nominated Mr. Kirk Noonan for Chairman of the Code Enforcement 
Board.  There were no other nominations.  Mr. Kirk Noonan was unanimously 
appointed Chairman of the Code Enforcement Board. 
 

B) Vice Chairman 
 
Mr. McGann nominated Mr. Frank Pizzichillo for Vice Chairman of the Code 
Enforcement Board.  There were no other nominations.  Mr. Frank Pizzichillo was 
unanimously appointed Vice Chairman of the Code Enforcement Board. 
 
4. PRELIMINARY MATTERS 
 
 A) Adoption of Minutes – December 9, 2015 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion to adopt the minutes of the December 9, 2015 Code 
Enforcement Board meeting.  Mr. Whittall seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously. 
 

B) Agenda Additions, Deletions and Adoption 
 
Mr. Tom Ramsey, Code Enforcement Officer, pulled item 6-B) 1a – Aurelija Miseviclute 
from today’s agenda.  He reported that the property is in compliance and the civil penalty has 

      1 01/13/16 CEB 
 



been paid.  He then pulled items 6-B) 1d – John Anthony Laporte, 6-B) 1h – Fan To Yeung 
and 6-B) 1i - Ancel Brown from today’s agenda.   
 
Ms. Melody Sanderson, Code Enforcement Officer, pulled item 6-B) 1j – Michael Stiles 
from today’s agenda.  She reported that the property is in compliance and the civil penalty 
has been paid.  She then pulled item 6-B) 1l – Anchor Commercial Bank from today’s 
agenda.  She reported that the property has a new owner and it has been brought into 
compliance.  She also pulled item 6-B) 1n – Gerald Fulchini, Fulchini Enterprises, Inc., from 
today’s agenda.  She reported that the property has been brought into compliance and the 
civil penalty has been paid. 
 
Ms. Sherri Philo, Deputy City Clerk, pulled items 6-A) 2 – Kenn Davin and 6-A) 3 – Jerry 
Yearwood from today’s agenda.  She reported that these cases will be heard at the February 
10, 2016 Code Enforcement Board meeting.     
 
Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mr. Whittall seconded 
the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
5. UNLICENSED CONTRACTORS/CITATIONS 
 
None 
 
6. EVIDENTIARY HEARINGS 
 
*Please note that the following cases were not heard in the order presented on the agenda. 
 

A) Citation Appeals  
 

1. CASE #15-CE-6150 / 0817T 
VIOLATOR: Aurelija Miseviclute 
VIOLATION: Pine Trees and a Palm Tree removed without a permit 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1834 24th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 
32960 

 
Mr. Ramsey reported that the property owner was cited for tree removal without a permit.  
He reported that the property owner did get an after the fact permit.  He said the Planning and 
Development Department normally requires tree mitigation, but mitigation was waived 
because the trees were damaged.   He explained that the citation with the civil penalty in the 
amount of $1,050.00 remains because even though the trees were damaged, a permit is still 
required.  There is a cost of enforcement in the amount of $64.67.   
 
Mr. Michael Merrill, Property Owner, reported that they purchased this home approximately 
six or seven months ago for a friend to live in.  He said they were unable to get insurance 
because of the condition of the trees.  He said one tree was about five-feet from the home and 
was lifting up the slab.  The other two trees had trunks that were rotated over.  He said while 
they were on the property with the insurance agent there was someone redoing their fence 
who stated that he knew a certified arborist who could take the trees down that weekend.  He 

      2 01/13/16 CEB 
 



said that not knowing they needed a permit was not an excuse and he was not going to use it 
as one.  But, to prove that they didn’t know they had another issue regarding the property and 
they called Code Enforcement to come and check on it while they had a front yard full of cut 
down trees.  He said they called Ms. Gayle Lafferty, City Planner, and asked her to come and 
look at the situation and to explain it to them.  She saw that the home was getting damaged 
by one tree and the other two were in danger of falling over.  He asked the Board for a relief 
on the civil penalty.      
 
Ms. Shell asked didn’t the arborist know a permit was needed. 
 
Mr. Merrill said that he called the arborist after the citation was issued and the arborist told 
him that he didn’t know a permit was needed in this County as he normally works in the City 
of Sebastian.  Mr. Merrill said if he had known a permit was needed he would have pulled 
one, but he was not going to use not knowing as a defense.   
 
Mr. Pizzichillo asked how much does a permit cost. 
 
Mr. Ramsey answered $40.00. 
 
Mr. Wayne Coment, City Attorney, asked did they have to pay double the normal permit fee.  
He was told that they did. 
 
Mr. Noonan asked were they quick to respond and take care of getting the after the fact 
permit. 
 
Mr. Ramsey answered yes.   
 
Mr. Pizzichillo felt that the property owners were on sound footing in the fact that they were 
told the trees had to come down.   He thought there should be a small penalty for not pulling 
the permit, but not anywhere near the $1,050.00 cited.   
 
Mr. Noonan agreed. 
 
Mr. Whittall said they have paid a penalty in the fact that they had to pay double the permit 
fee of $40.00.   
 
Ms. Sanderson clarified that the permit fee is $20.00.  They paid $40.00, which is double the 
initial fee for the after the fact permit. 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion that whatever costs were paid would be sufficient. 
 
Mr. Coment said the Code Officer is entitled to recover the cost of enforcement. 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo made that part of his motion.  Mr. Noonan seconded the motion. 
 
Mr. Coment explained that the Board would need to find that there was a violation and that it 
was corrected. 

      3 01/13/16 CEB 
 



 
Mr. Pizzichillo asked Mr. Noonan to make the motion. 
 
Mr. Noonan made a motion that the Board finds there was a violation, the violation has 
been corrected, and to issue a Board Order for payment for the cost of enforcement in 
the amount of $64.67 and that the double permit fee ($40.00) stand in place of the initial 
civil penalty.  Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 

2. CASE #15-CE-1747 / 1825 
VIOLATOR: Kenn Davin 
VIOLATION: Unlicensed contracting; failure to apply for a building 
permit 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1602 36th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 
32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 

3. CASE #15-CE-1748 / 1827 
VIOLATOR: Jerry Yearwood 
VIOLATION: Unlicensed contracting 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1602 36TH Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 
32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 

B) Non-Compliance / Compliance Reports 
 

1. Request for Board Order  
 

a. CASE #15-CE-6151 / 0821T 
    VIOLATOR: Aurelija Miseviclute 

VIOLATION: RV parked in residential area in required front 
yard 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1834 24th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

  
This item was removed from today’s agenda. 
 

b. CASE #15-CE-6206 / 2015/2496 
 VIOLATOR: William Joseph Brown 
 VIOLATION: Noise Ordinance 

VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1103 21st Street, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
Mr. William Brown said that he accepts responsibility and that he would pay the civil 
penalty. 
 

      4 01/13/16 CEB 
 



Mr. Coment said if the civil penalty is paid then the case would be closed.   
 

c. CASE #15-CE-5770 / 569M 
    VIOLATOR: Justin Russell Flinchum / Randall Flinchum 

VIOLATION: Accessory structure converted to residence 
without approval 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2325 18th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

   
Ms. Sanderson reported the property has changed hands and the new property owner, Ms. 
Sharon Flinchum has signed a compliance agreement with the City to bring the property in 
compliance by February 15, 2016.  She said as far as this case is concerned, the civil 
penalties have been paid and the listed violators are in compliance. 
 
Mr. Coment clarified that no action is needed by the Board for this case. 
 
*Please note that there is a new case for this property with the violator being Ms. Sharon 
Flinchum. 
 

  d. CASE #15-CE-6034 / 0756T 
    VIOLATOR: John Anthony Laporte – c/o Trevor Laporte 

VIOLATION: Construction and/or demolition without City of 
Vero Beach Planning and Development Department approval 
or Indian River County Building Department permitting; trash 
and debris 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2103 17th Street, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 
   e. CASE #15-CE-1146 / 787M 
    VIOLATOR: Francisco Flores (Guzman) 

VIOLATION: Fence installed without code compliance from 
the City of Vero Beach Planning and Development Department 
or a building permit from the Indian River County Building 
Department 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 3 Lamplighter Lane, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
Ms. Sanderson reported that this came before the Board at their December meeting.  She said 
the fence was installed in Citrus Mobile Home Park and in order to apply for a building 
permit they have to get permission from Airport staff because it is Airport property.  She said 
that she spoke with Airport staff and the trailer itself has changed hands.  She requested that 
they continue this case for 30 days in order to give staff time to straighten out some issues 
with the ownership.   
 

      5 01/13/16 CEB 
 



Mr. Coment noted that the Board issued an Order to Correct within 30 days at their last 
hearing. 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion that the Board continues the Order to Correct for 
another 30 days.  Ms. Shell seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 

f. CASE #15-CE-6138 / 779M 
VIOLATOR: Viking Tree and Landscaping Services, LLC; 
Brian Rutherford; Jessica Cantlon 
VIOLATION: Specimen trees (2) removed without tree 
removal permit 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2076 Nevarra Avenue, Vero 
Beach, Florida 32960 

 
Ms. Sanderson reported that Viking Tree and Landscaping Services, LLC, applied for the 
permit last week.  It was her understanding that the permit would be approved and the 
Planning and Development Department was not requiring mitigation, which brings them in 
compliance.  She reported that at last month’s hearing the Board issued an order to correct 
and to pay the initial civil penalty of $1,000.00 and the cost of enforcement in the amount of 
$141.38.  She asked the Board members if they would be willing to reduce the civil penalty 
to $500.00.   
 
Mr. Pizzichillo thought that was a good suggestion.   
 
Ms. Shell asked would the trees be replaced. 
 
Ms. Sanderson answered no.  She said the Planning and Development Department has 
waived mitigation. 
 
Mr. Bryant made a motion that the Board keeps the civil penalty at $1,000.00 along 
with the cost of enforcement.  He said they were hefty trees.  He said this is a hard 
lesson to learn. 
 
Ms. Sanderson was called to step out of the meeting to speak to Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning 
and Development Director.   She reported to the Board that she was told the trees were dead, 
mitigation was not required, and there should not be a civil penalty. 
 
Mr. Noonan asked is Mr. McGarry suggesting that they remove the civil penalty. 
 
Ms. Sanderson thought that was correct. 
 
Mr. Coment suggested that they call Mr. McGarry into the meeting. 
 
Ms. Sanderson left the meeting to get clarification from Mr. McGarry. 
 
At this time, the Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Brian Rutherford. 
 

      6 01/13/16 CEB 
 



Ms. Sanderson entered back into the meeting and reported that mitigation was not required 
because the trees were dead. 
Mr. Coment asked what was the position on the civil penalty. 
 
Ms. Sanderson said it is at the Board’s discretion. 
 
Mr. Noonan felt that this case was similar to a previous case they heard today (Case #15-CE-
6204). 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the motion for discussion. 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo said that he was torn because originally he agreed with reducing the civil 
penalty to $500.00.  He said with no mitigation being required and the way the limbs and 
things were thrown into the right-of-way, he is going to have to think about it.  He said that 
he could not vote yes or no at this point.  He said the tree limbs did not look dead to him.   
 
Mr. Bryant said that he remembered driving around and seeing this prior to him being on this 
Board and he could not believe that the City allowed the trees to be taken down.  Now it has 
come up that the trees were dead, but the branches were green.   
 
Mr. Pizzichillo said the civil penalty was $1,000.00 and the Code Officer suggested reducing 
it to $500.00.  He suggested that they compromise and enforce the civil penalty of $750.00.  
Mr. Bryant said that he would agree with $750.00. 
 
Mr. Bryant amended his motion that the Board imposes a reduced civil penalty in the 
amount of $750.00 along with the cost of enforcement.  Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the 
amended motion and it passed 5-2 with Mr. Bryant voting yes, Mr. Whittall yes, Mr. 
McDonald no, Mr. McGann yes, Ms. Shell yes, Mr. Pizzichillo yes, and Mr. Noonan no.   
 
Mr. Rutherford questioned appealing this case.  He said the City stated that the trees were 
dead. 
 
Mr. Coment explained that an appeal would go before the Circuit Court.  He said that he 
could go before the City Council and request a reduction, but to appeal the action of the 
Board he would have to go to the Circuit Court. 
 
   g. CASE #15-CE-6204 / 0818T 
    VIOLATOR: Betty Smith 
    VIOLATION: Reroof and fascia work without a permit 

VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1745 41st Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
Mr. Ramsey reported that the violation in this case has not been corrected and the civil 
penalty has been paid.  He requested that the Board issue an order to pay the cost of 
enforcement in the amount of $51.10 along with continuing penalties of $50.00 a day 
commencing on December 5, 2015, the day following the compliance date.   
 

      7 01/13/16 CEB 
 



Ms. Betty Smith said that she didn’t know that she had to pay for a permit before she got a 
licensed roofer because the person that did the work was not licensed. 
Mr. Coment asked if she has hired a licensed roofer. 
 
Ms. Brown answered no.   
 
Mr. Pizzichillo asked Ms. Brown when she would be getting a permit. 
 
Ms. Brown said that she would go today. 
 
Mr. Bryant asked Ms. Brown if she has selected a roofer. 
 
Ms. Brown said that she had two (2) roofers come out to the property, but has not hired one 
yet because it is expensive.  She said that she did pick up an application for the permit, but 
she did not fill it out because the person who did the work was not a licensed roofer. 
 
Mr. Coment asked who was doing the work. 
 
Ms. Brown said it was her niece’s boyfriend. 
 
Mr. Coment said that she, as the property owner, could do the work without being licensed. 
 
Mr. Bryant explained to Ms. Brown that she could apply for a permit as an owner/builder.  
He said if the Building Department does not allow her to do it as an owner/builder then she 
would have to have a licensed roofer apply for the permit.   
 
Mr. Pizzichillo asked was the entire roof taken off. 
 
Ms. Brown answered no.  She said a branch from an Oak Tree fell through the roof and it 
was leaking. 
 
Mr. Noonan made a motion that the Board issues an order finding that there is a 
violation, that the violation is to be corrected by February 5, 2016 and to pay the cost of 
enforcement in the amount of $51.10.  Ms. Shell seconded the motion and it passed 
unanimously. 
 

h. CASE #15-CE-6220 / 0831T 
VIOLATOR: Fan To Yeung and Zhengyi Wang 
VIOLATION: Three (3) trees removed without a permit 
VIOLATIONADDRESS: 456 19th Lane, Vero Beach, Florida 
32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 
   i. CASE #15-CE-6160 / 0825T 
    VIOLATOR: Ancel Brown 

      8 01/13/16 CEB 
 



VIOLATION: Many items of unstored goods or trash and 
debris located throughout the property 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1915 18th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 
   j. CASE #15-CE-6158 / 781M 
    VIOLATOR: Michael Stiles 

VIOLATION: Shed constructed without Code Compliance or 
a building permit 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2316 15th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida  

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 
   k. CASE #15-CE-6189 / 0840T 
    VIOLATOR: Phyllis F. (Collins) Duffey 

VIOLATION: Grass, weeds, and undergrowth in excess of 12 
 inches 

VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1455 15th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
Mr. Ramsey reported that the property remains in violation and the civil penalty has not been 
paid.  He requested that the Board issue an order to pay the cost of enforcement in the 
amount of $51.10 along with continuing penalties of $50.00 a day. 
 
Mr. Noonan made a motion that the Board issues an order finding that there is a 
violation, that the violation continues to exist, to pay the initial $50.00 civil penalty, a 
cost of enforcement in the amount of $50.10, and a $50.00 continuing penalty 
(commencing on December 29, 2015, the day following the correction date).  Mr. 
Pizzichillo seconded the motion and it passed unanimously. 
 
   l. CASE #15-CE-6232 / 791M 
    VIOLATOR: Anchor Commercial Bank 

VIOLATION: Weeds, grass or undergrowth at a height of 
more than 12 inches 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2365 16th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 
   m. CASE #15-CE-6078 / 757M 
    VIOLATOR: Citimortgage / Cecil R. Bays 

VIOLATION: Weeds, grass, or undergrowth at a height of 
more than 12 inches 

      9 01/13/16 CEB 
 



VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2245 27th Avenue, Vero Beach, 
Florida 32960 

 
Mr. Coment reported that this case was heard by the Board last month.  He said the bank had 
a representative present at that meeting and their argument was that the bank should not be 
listed on the citation because they do not have possession of the property.  He said after the 
meeting he spoke with the banks attorneys and agreed that they should not be listed.  He 
explained that the bank does not have legal possession and are not obligated to take care of 
the property.  He requested that the Board approve changing the order to only have the 
property owner, Mr. Cecil Bays, listed on the Board Order and to take Citimortgage off. 
 
Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion that the Board approves changing the order to list only 
Mr. Cecil Bays and removing Citimortgage.  Mr. McGann seconded the motion and it 
passed unanimously.   
 
   n. CASE #15-CE-6262 / 795M 

VIOLATOR: Gerald Fulchini, Fulchini Enterprises Inc. and 
Digna Martinez 
VIOLATION: Deck installed without Code Compliance 
Certification 
VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1255 26th Street, Lot #2, Vero 
Beach, Florida 32960 

 
This item was pulled from today’s agenda. 
 
7. OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
8. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS  
 
None 
 
9. CLERK’S MATTERS 
 
None 
 
10. ATTORNEY’S MATTERS 
 
None 
 
11. CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS 
 
None 
 
12. MEMBER’S MATTERS 
 

      10 01/13/16 CEB 
 



None 
 
13. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Today’s meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m. 
 
/sp 
 

      11 01/13/16 CEB 
 


	CODE ENFORCEMENT BOARD MINUTES
	Wednesday, January 13, 2016 – 2:00 p.m.
	City Hall, Council Chambers, Vero Beach, Florida
	PRESENT: Vice Chairman, Kirk Noonan; Members: Suzanne Shell, Frank Pizzichillo, Jeffrey McGann, Stephen McDonald, Herbert Whittall and Christopher Bryant Also Present: City Attorney, Wayne Coment; Code Enforcement Officer, Tom Ramsey; Code Enforcement Officer, Melody Sanderson and Deputy City Clerk, Sherri Philo
	1. CALL TO ORDER 
	Today’s meeting was called to order at 2:00 p.m.
	2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIENCE
	The Vice Chairman led the Board members and the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance to the flag.
	The Deputy City Clerk swore in staff and members of the audience en masse.
	3. ELECTION OF OFFICERS
	A) Chairman
	Mr. Pizzichillo nominated Mr. Kirk Noonan for Chairman of the Code Enforcement Board.  There were no other nominations.  Mr. Kirk Noonan was unanimously appointed Chairman of the Code Enforcement Board.
	B) Vice Chairman
	Mr. McGann nominated Mr. Frank Pizzichillo for Vice Chairman of the Code Enforcement Board.  There were no other nominations.  Mr. Frank Pizzichillo was unanimously appointed Vice Chairman of the Code Enforcement Board.
	4. PRELIMINARY MATTERS
	 A) Adoption of Minutes – December 9, 2015
	Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion to adopt the minutes of the December 9, 2015 Code Enforcement Board meeting.  Mr. Whittall seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	B) Agenda Additions, Deletions and Adoption
	Mr. Tom Ramsey, Code Enforcement Officer, pulled item 6-B) 1a – Aurelija Miseviclute from today’s agenda.  He reported that the property is in compliance and the civil penalty has been paid.  He then pulled items 6-B) 1d – John Anthony Laporte, 6-B) 1h – Fan To Yeung and 6-B) 1i - Ancel Brown from today’s agenda.  
	Ms. Melody Sanderson, Code Enforcement Officer, pulled item 6-B) 1j – Michael Stiles from today’s agenda.  She reported that the property is in compliance and the civil penalty has been paid.  She then pulled item 6-B) 1l – Anchor Commercial Bank from today’s agenda.  She reported that the property has a new owner and it has been brought into compliance.  She also pulled item 6-B) 1n – Gerald Fulchini, Fulchini Enterprises, Inc., from today’s agenda.  She reported that the property has been brought into compliance and the civil penalty has been paid.
	Ms. Sherri Philo, Deputy City Clerk, pulled items 6-A) 2 – Kenn Davin and 6-A) 3 – Jerry Yearwood from today’s agenda.  She reported that these cases will be heard at the February 10, 2016 Code Enforcement Board meeting.    
	Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion to adopt the agenda as amended.  Mr. Whittall seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	5. UNLICENSED CONTRACTORS/CITATIONS
	None
	6. EVIDENTIARY HEARINGS
	*Please note that the following cases were not heard in the order presented on the agenda.
	A) Citation Appeals 
	1. CASE #15-CE-6150 / 0817T
	VIOLATOR: Aurelija Miseviclute
	VIOLATION: Pine Trees and a Palm Tree removed without a permit
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1834 24th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Mr. Ramsey reported that the property owner was cited for tree removal without a permit.  He reported that the property owner did get an after the fact permit.  He said the Planning and Development Department normally requires tree mitigation, but mitigation was waived because the trees were damaged.   He explained that the citation with the civil penalty in the amount of $1,050.00 remains because even though the trees were damaged, a permit is still required.  There is a cost of enforcement in the amount of $64.67.  
	Mr. Michael Merrill, Property Owner, reported that they purchased this home approximately six or seven months ago for a friend to live in.  He said they were unable to get insurance because of the condition of the trees.  He said one tree was about five-feet from the home and was lifting up the slab.  The other two trees had trunks that were rotated over.  He said while they were on the property with the insurance agent there was someone redoing their fence who stated that he knew a certified arborist who could take the trees down that weekend.  He said that not knowing they needed a permit was not an excuse and he was not going to use it as one.  But, to prove that they didn’t know they had another issue regarding the property and they called Code Enforcement to come and check on it while they had a front yard full of cut down trees.  He said they called Ms. Gayle Lafferty, City Planner, and asked her to come and look at the situation and to explain it to them.  She saw that the home was getting damaged by one tree and the other two were in danger of falling over.  He asked the Board for a relief on the civil penalty.     
	Ms. Shell asked didn’t the arborist know a permit was needed.
	Mr. Merrill said that he called the arborist after the citation was issued and the arborist told him that he didn’t know a permit was needed in this County as he normally works in the City of Sebastian.  Mr. Merrill said if he had known a permit was needed he would have pulled one, but he was not going to use not knowing as a defense.  
	Mr. Pizzichillo asked how much does a permit cost.
	Mr. Ramsey answered $40.00.
	Mr. Wayne Coment, City Attorney, asked did they have to pay double the normal permit fee.  He was told that they did.
	Mr. Noonan asked were they quick to respond and take care of getting the after the fact permit.
	Mr. Ramsey answered yes.  
	Mr. Pizzichillo felt that the property owners were on sound footing in the fact that they were told the trees had to come down.   He thought there should be a small penalty for not pulling the permit, but not anywhere near the $1,050.00 cited.  
	Mr. Noonan agreed.
	Mr. Whittall said they have paid a penalty in the fact that they had to pay double the permit fee of $40.00.  
	Ms. Sanderson clarified that the permit fee is $20.00.  They paid $40.00, which is double the initial fee for the after the fact permit.
	Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion that whatever costs were paid would be sufficient.
	Mr. Coment said the Code Officer is entitled to recover the cost of enforcement.
	Mr. Pizzichillo made that part of his motion.  Mr. Noonan seconded the motion.
	Mr. Coment explained that the Board would need to find that there was a violation and that it was corrected.
	Mr. Pizzichillo asked Mr. Noonan to make the motion.
	Mr. Noonan made a motion that the Board finds there was a violation, the violation has been corrected, and to issue a Board Order for payment for the cost of enforcement in the amount of $64.67 and that the double permit fee ($40.00) stand in place of the initial civil penalty.  Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	2. CASE #15-CE-1747 / 1825
	VIOLATOR: Kenn Davin
	VIOLATION: Unlicensed contracting; failure to apply for a building permit
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1602 36th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	3. CASE #15-CE-1748 / 1827
	VIOLATOR: Jerry Yearwood
	VIOLATION: Unlicensed contracting
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1602 36TH Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	B) Non-Compliance / Compliance Reports
	1. Request for Board Order 
	a. CASE #15-CE-6151 / 0821T
	    VIOLATOR: Aurelija Miseviclute
	VIOLATION: RV parked in residential area in required front yard
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1834 24th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was removed from today’s agenda.
	b. CASE #15-CE-6206 / 2015/2496
	 VIOLATOR: William Joseph Brown
	 VIOLATION: Noise Ordinance
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1103 21st Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Mr. William Brown said that he accepts responsibility and that he would pay the civil penalty.
	Mr. Coment said if the civil penalty is paid then the case would be closed.  
	c. CASE #15-CE-5770 / 569M
	    VIOLATOR: Justin Russell Flinchum / Randall Flinchum
	VIOLATION: Accessory structure converted to residence without approval
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2325 18th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Ms. Sanderson reported the property has changed hands and the new property owner, Ms. Sharon Flinchum has signed a compliance agreement with the City to bring the property in compliance by February 15, 2016.  She said as far as this case is concerned, the civil penalties have been paid and the listed violators are in compliance.
	Mr. Coment clarified that no action is needed by the Board for this case.
	*Please note that there is a new case for this property with the violator being Ms. Sharon Flinchum.
	  d. CASE #15-CE-6034 / 0756T
	    VIOLATOR: John Anthony Laporte – c/o Trevor Laporte
	VIOLATION: Construction and/or demolition without City of Vero Beach Planning and Development Department approval or Indian River County Building Department permitting; trash and debris
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2103 17th Street, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	   e. CASE #15-CE-1146 / 787M
	    VIOLATOR: Francisco Flores (Guzman)
	VIOLATION: Fence installed without code compliance from the City of Vero Beach Planning and Development Department or a building permit from the Indian River County Building Department
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 3 Lamplighter Lane, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Ms. Sanderson reported that this came before the Board at their December meeting.  She said the fence was installed in Citrus Mobile Home Park and in order to apply for a building permit they have to get permission from Airport staff because it is Airport property.  She said that she spoke with Airport staff and the trailer itself has changed hands.  She requested that they continue this case for 30 days in order to give staff time to straighten out some issues with the ownership.  
	Mr. Coment noted that the Board issued an Order to Correct within 30 days at their last hearing.
	Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion that the Board continues the Order to Correct for another 30 days.  Ms. Shell seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	f. CASE #15-CE-6138 / 779M
	VIOLATOR: Viking Tree and Landscaping Services, LLC; Brian Rutherford; Jessica Cantlon
	VIOLATION: Specimen trees (2) removed without tree removal permit
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2076 Nevarra Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Ms. Sanderson reported that Viking Tree and Landscaping Services, LLC, applied for the permit last week.  It was her understanding that the permit would be approved and the Planning and Development Department was not requiring mitigation, which brings them in compliance.  She reported that at last month’s hearing the Board issued an order to correct and to pay the initial civil penalty of $1,000.00 and the cost of enforcement in the amount of $141.38.  She asked the Board members if they would be willing to reduce the civil penalty to $500.00.  
	Mr. Pizzichillo thought that was a good suggestion.  
	Ms. Shell asked would the trees be replaced.
	Ms. Sanderson answered no.  She said the Planning and Development Department has waived mitigation.
	Mr. Bryant made a motion that the Board keeps the civil penalty at $1,000.00 along with the cost of enforcement.  He said they were hefty trees.  He said this is a hard lesson to learn.
	Ms. Sanderson was called to step out of the meeting to speak to Mr. Tim McGarry, Planning and Development Director.   She reported to the Board that she was told the trees were dead, mitigation was not required, and there should not be a civil penalty.
	Mr. Noonan asked is Mr. McGarry suggesting that they remove the civil penalty.
	Ms. Sanderson thought that was correct.
	Mr. Coment suggested that they call Mr. McGarry into the meeting.
	Ms. Sanderson left the meeting to get clarification from Mr. McGarry.
	At this time, the Deputy City Clerk swore in Mr. Brian Rutherford.
	Ms. Sanderson entered back into the meeting and reported that mitigation was not required because the trees were dead.
	Mr. Coment asked what was the position on the civil penalty.
	Ms. Sanderson said it is at the Board’s discretion.
	Mr. Noonan felt that this case was similar to a previous case they heard today (Case #15-CE-6204).
	Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the motion for discussion.
	Mr. Pizzichillo said that he was torn because originally he agreed with reducing the civil penalty to $500.00.  He said with no mitigation being required and the way the limbs and things were thrown into the right-of-way, he is going to have to think about it.  He said that he could not vote yes or no at this point.  He said the tree limbs did not look dead to him.  
	Mr. Bryant said that he remembered driving around and seeing this prior to him being on this Board and he could not believe that the City allowed the trees to be taken down.  Now it has come up that the trees were dead, but the branches were green.  
	Mr. Pizzichillo said the civil penalty was $1,000.00 and the Code Officer suggested reducing it to $500.00.  He suggested that they compromise and enforce the civil penalty of $750.00.  Mr. Bryant said that he would agree with $750.00.
	Mr. Bryant amended his motion that the Board imposes a reduced civil penalty in the amount of $750.00 along with the cost of enforcement.  Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the amended motion and it passed 5-2 with Mr. Bryant voting yes, Mr. Whittall yes, Mr. McDonald no, Mr. McGann yes, Ms. Shell yes, Mr. Pizzichillo yes, and Mr. Noonan no.  
	Mr. Rutherford questioned appealing this case.  He said the City stated that the trees were dead.
	Mr. Coment explained that an appeal would go before the Circuit Court.  He said that he could go before the City Council and request a reduction, but to appeal the action of the Board he would have to go to the Circuit Court.
	   g. CASE #15-CE-6204 / 0818T
	    VIOLATOR: Betty Smith
	    VIOLATION: Reroof and fascia work without a permit
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1745 41st Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Mr. Ramsey reported that the violation in this case has not been corrected and the civil penalty has been paid.  He requested that the Board issue an order to pay the cost of enforcement in the amount of $51.10 along with continuing penalties of $50.00 a day commencing on December 5, 2015, the day following the compliance date.  
	Ms. Betty Smith said that she didn’t know that she had to pay for a permit before she got a licensed roofer because the person that did the work was not licensed.
	Mr. Coment asked if she has hired a licensed roofer.
	Ms. Brown answered no.  
	Mr. Pizzichillo asked Ms. Brown when she would be getting a permit.
	Ms. Brown said that she would go today.
	Mr. Bryant asked Ms. Brown if she has selected a roofer.
	Ms. Brown said that she had two (2) roofers come out to the property, but has not hired one yet because it is expensive.  She said that she did pick up an application for the permit, but she did not fill it out because the person who did the work was not a licensed roofer.
	Mr. Coment asked who was doing the work.
	Ms. Brown said it was her niece’s boyfriend.
	Mr. Coment said that she, as the property owner, could do the work without being licensed.
	Mr. Bryant explained to Ms. Brown that she could apply for a permit as an owner/builder.  He said if the Building Department does not allow her to do it as an owner/builder then she would have to have a licensed roofer apply for the permit.  
	Mr. Pizzichillo asked was the entire roof taken off.
	Ms. Brown answered no.  She said a branch from an Oak Tree fell through the roof and it was leaking.
	Mr. Noonan made a motion that the Board issues an order finding that there is a violation, that the violation is to be corrected by February 5, 2016 and to pay the cost of enforcement in the amount of $51.10.  Ms. Shell seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	h. CASE #15-CE-6220 / 0831T
	VIOLATOR: Fan To Yeung and Zhengyi Wang
	VIOLATION: Three (3) trees removed without a permit
	VIOLATIONADDRESS: 456 19th Lane, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	   i. CASE #15-CE-6160 / 0825T
	    VIOLATOR: Ancel Brown
	VIOLATION: Many items of unstored goods or trash and debris located throughout the property
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1915 18th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	   j. CASE #15-CE-6158 / 781M
	    VIOLATOR: Michael Stiles
	VIOLATION: Shed constructed without Code Compliance or a building permit
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2316 15th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	   k. CASE #15-CE-6189 / 0840T
	    VIOLATOR: Phyllis F. (Collins) Duffey
	VIOLATION: Grass, weeds, and undergrowth in excess of 12  inches
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1455 15th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Mr. Ramsey reported that the property remains in violation and the civil penalty has not been paid.  He requested that the Board issue an order to pay the cost of enforcement in the amount of $51.10 along with continuing penalties of $50.00 a day.
	Mr. Noonan made a motion that the Board issues an order finding that there is a violation, that the violation continues to exist, to pay the initial $50.00 civil penalty, a cost of enforcement in the amount of $50.10, and a $50.00 continuing penalty (commencing on December 29, 2015, the day following the correction date).  Mr. Pizzichillo seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.
	   l. CASE #15-CE-6232 / 791M
	    VIOLATOR: Anchor Commercial Bank
	VIOLATION: Weeds, grass or undergrowth at a height of more than 12 inches
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2365 16th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	   m. CASE #15-CE-6078 / 757M
	    VIOLATOR: Citimortgage / Cecil R. Bays
	VIOLATION: Weeds, grass, or undergrowth at a height of more than 12 inches
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 2245 27th Avenue, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	Mr. Coment reported that this case was heard by the Board last month.  He said the bank had a representative present at that meeting and their argument was that the bank should not be listed on the citation because they do not have possession of the property.  He said after the meeting he spoke with the banks attorneys and agreed that they should not be listed.  He explained that the bank does not have legal possession and are not obligated to take care of the property.  He requested that the Board approve changing the order to only have the property owner, Mr. Cecil Bays, listed on the Board Order and to take Citimortgage off.
	Mr. Pizzichillo made a motion that the Board approves changing the order to list only Mr. Cecil Bays and removing Citimortgage.  Mr. McGann seconded the motion and it passed unanimously.  
	   n. CASE #15-CE-6262 / 795M
	VIOLATOR: Gerald Fulchini, Fulchini Enterprises Inc. and Digna Martinez
	VIOLATION: Deck installed without Code Compliance Certification
	VIOLATION ADDRESS: 1255 26th Street, Lot #2, Vero Beach, Florida 32960
	This item was pulled from today’s agenda.
	7. OLD BUSINESS
	None
	8. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
	None
	9. CLERK’S MATTERS
	None
	10. ATTORNEY’S MATTERS
	None
	11. CHAIRMAN’S MATTERS
	None
	12. MEMBER’S MATTERS
	None
	13. ADJOURNMENT
	Today’s meeting adjourned at 2:45 p.m.
	/sp


<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /All
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Gray Gamma 2.2)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Warning
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.6
  /CompressObjects /All
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket true
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.1000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /UseDeviceIndependentColor
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType true
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo false
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments false
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Remove
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile (North America Web/Internet)
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
    /Arial-Black
    /Arial-BlackItalic
    /Arial-BoldItalicMT
    /Arial-BoldMT
    /Arial-ItalicMT
    /ArialMT
    /ArialNarrow
    /ArialNarrow-Bold
    /ArialNarrow-BoldItalic
    /ArialNarrow-Italic
    /CenturyGothic
    /CenturyGothic-Bold
    /CenturyGothic-BoldItalic
    /CenturyGothic-Italic
    /CourierNewPS-BoldItalicMT
    /CourierNewPS-BoldMT
    /CourierNewPS-ItalicMT
    /CourierNewPSMT
    /Georgia
    /Georgia-Bold
    /Georgia-BoldItalic
    /Georgia-Italic
    /Impact
    /LucidaConsole
    /Tahoma
    /Tahoma-Bold
    /TimesNewRomanMT-ExtraBold
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-BoldMT
    /TimesNewRomanPS-ItalicMT
    /TimesNewRomanPSMT
    /Trebuchet-BoldItalic
    /TrebuchetMS
    /TrebuchetMS-Bold
    /TrebuchetMS-Italic
    /Verdana
    /Verdana-Bold
    /Verdana-BoldItalic
    /Verdana-Italic
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 150
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 150
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 150
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 150
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.76
    /HSamples [2 1 1 2] /VSamples [2 1 1 2]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 15
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects true
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile (None)
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<


    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e55464e1a65876863768467e5770b548c62535370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc666e901a554652d965874ef6768467e5770b548c52175370300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>



    /HUN <>
    /ITA (Utilizzare queste impostazioni per creare documenti Adobe PDF adatti per visualizzare e stampare documenti aziendali in modo affidabile. I documenti PDF creati possono essere aperti con Acrobat e Adobe Reader 6.0 e versioni successive.)
    /JPN <>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020be44c988b2c8c2a40020bb38c11cb97c0020c548c815c801c73cb85c0020bcf4ace00020c778c1c4d558b2940020b3700020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200036002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken waarmee zakelijke documenten betrouwbaar kunnen worden weergegeven en afgedrukt. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 6.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>


    /SKY <>

    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>

    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents suitable for reliable viewing and printing of business documents.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 6.0 and later.)
  >>
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [600 600]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


